




ITEM I. B. 







































ITEM II. A. 



________________________________________________________________________ 

Memorandum
________________________________________________________________________ 

To: Mayor and Council 

From: Rebecca V. Rhodes 
Chief Charles McNair 

Date: July 31, 2015 

Subject: Resolution approving an Intergovernmental Mutual Aid 
Agreement for the Three Rivers Greenway.   

           _________________________________________________________ 

ISSUE 

Consideration of a Resolution approving an Intergovernmental Mutual Aid 
Agreement for the Three Rivers Greenway.     

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 

S.C. Code section 23-20-50 was amended and requires that an 
agreement entered into pursuant to Title 23 on behalf of a law 
enforcement authority must be approved by the appropriate state, county 
or local law enforcement authority’s chief executive officer, and by the 
governing body of each jurisdiction. 

Council has already approved similar Resolutions ratifying Mutual Aid and 
Task Force Agreements with several entities.  Council’s approval of the 
resolution ratifies and meets the new requirement for these types of 
agreements.   

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends Council approve a resolution approving an 
Intergovernmental Mutual Aid Agreement for the Three Rivers Greenway 
and authorize the Mayor to sign the agreement on behalf of the City. 

ITEM IV. A. 

























________________________________________________________________________ 

Memorandum
________________________________________________________________ 

To: Mayor and Council 

From: Rebecca Vance, City Manager 
Shaun Greenwood, Assistant City Manager 

Date: July 31, 2015 

Subject: Discussion and Approval of the City of Cayce Unsafe 
Structure Program Guidelines 

________________________________________________________________ 

Issue 

Council discussion and approval is needed for the City of Cayce Unsafe 
Structure Program Guidelines. 

Discussion 

At the request of City Council, staff has compiled guidelines on how the 
International Property Maintenance Code (IPMC) will be used to address 
unsafe structures within the City limits.  A committee consisting of the 
Building Official, Fire Marshal and Lieutenant over Code Enforcement 
created a list of properties that are ranked according to their current state 
of disrepair.  Enforcement efforts will target the worst structures first and 
will continue down the list until all budgeted funds are expended.   

The guidelines summarize the required notices to home owners and time 
frames specified in the IPMC.  Additionally, the guidelines specify the 
process and authority for the City to place a lien on the property when 
demolition becomes necessary.    

Recommendation 

Staff recommends Council approve the City of Cayce Unsafe Structure 
Program Guidelines. 

ITEM V. A. 



The City of Cayce Unsafe 
Structure Program Guidelines 
 

Program Overview 

The City of Cayce has initiated a Task Force to survey the City and identify any unsafe 
structure that is unfit for human occupancy or is so damaged, decayed, dilapidated that 
the structure needs to be condemned pursuant to the provisions of the International 
Property Maintenance Code. This program will identify properties that are in violation 
and a set process will be followed to ensure that the property owner has abated or 
corrected the unsafe conditions either by repair, rehabilitation, demolition, or other 
approved corrective action. If the owner fails to comply with this program in the time 
prescribed, the City shall cause the structure to be demolished and removed, either by 
contract or arrangement with a private persons, and the cost of such demolition and 
removal shall be charged against the real estate upon which the structure is located and 
shall be a lien upon such real estate. 

The Task Force will consist of the City Building Code Official, Fire Marshal, and 
members of Public Safety’s Code Enforcement Division. The Task Force will generate a 
prioritized list of unsafe structures and provide said list to City Council for their approval. 

This program shall conform to all the provisions and processes described in 
the International Property Maintenance Code ("IPMC"), as adopted by the 
City of Cayce. Some of these provisions and processes are summarized 
below. The language of the IPMC controls in the event of any conflict or 
inconsistency with the language of these Guidelines. 

Definitions: 
 
Unsafe Structure 
 
An unsafe structure is one that is found to be dangerous to the life, health, property or 
safety of the public or the occupants of the structure by not providing minimum 
safeguards to protect or warn occupants in the event of a fire, or because such structure 
contains unsafe equipment or is so damaged, decayed, dilapidated, structurally unsafe 
or of such faulty construction or unstable foundation, that partial or complete collapse is 
possible. 
 
 
 



Structure unfit for human occupancy 
 
A structure is unfit for human occupancy whenever the code official finds that such 
structure is unsafe, unlawful or, because of the degree to which the structure is in 
disrepair or lacks maintenance, is insanitary, vermin or rat infested, contains filth and 
contamination, or lacks ventilation, illumination, sanitary or heating facilities or other 
essential equipment required by this code, or because the location of the structure 
constitutes a hazard to the occupants of the structure or to the public. 
 
Violations 
 
The code official shall serve a notice of violation or order in accordance with section 107 
of the IPMC. Any person failing to comply with a notice of violation or order served in 
accordance with Section 107 of the IPMC shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanour. If 
the notice of violation is not complied with, the code official shall institute the appropriate 
proceeding at law or equity to restrain, correct or abate such violation, or to require the 
removal or termination of the unlawful occupancy of the structure in violation of the 
provisions of the IPMC or of the order or direction made pursuant thereto. Any action 
taken by the authority having jurisdiction on such premises shall be charged against the 
real estate upon which the structure is located and shall be a lien upon such real estate 
(Section 106.3 IPMC). Any person who shall violate a provision of the IPMC, or fail to 
comply therewith, or with any requirements thereof, shall be prosecuted within the limits 
provided by state and local laws. Each day that a violation continues after due notice 
has been served shall be deemed a separate offense (Section 106.4 IPMC). 
 
Notices and Orders Section 107 
 
Whenever the code official determines that there has been a violation of the IPMC or 
has grounds to believe that a violation has occurred, notice shall be given in the manner 
prescribed in Sections 107.2 and 107.3 to the person responsible for the violation as 
specified in the IPMC. Notices for condemnation procedures shall also comply with 
Section 108.3. 
 
107.2 Form 
 
Such notice prescribed in Section 107.1 shall be in accordance with the following: 
 

1. Be in writing. 
2. Include a description of the real estate sufficient for identification. 
3. Include a statement of the violation or violations and why the notice is being 

issued. 
4. Include a correction order allowing a reasonable time to make repairs and 

improvements required to bring the dwelling unit or structure into compliance with 
the provisions of this code. 

5. Inform the property owner of the right to appeal. 
6. Include a statement of the right to file a lien in accordance with Section 106.3. 



 
 

  107.3 Method of service 
 
Such notice shall be deemed to be properly served if a copy thereof is: 
 

1. Delivered personally; 
2. Sent by certified or first class mail addressed to the last known address; or 
3. If the notice is returned showing that the letter was not delivered, a copy thereof 

shall be posted in a conspicuous place in or about the structure affected by such 
notice. 
 

 107.4 Unauthorized tampering 
Signs, tags or seals posted or affixed by the code official shall not be mutilated, 
destroyed or tampered with, or removed without authorization from the code official. 
Penalties for noncompliance with orders and notices shall be set forth in Section 106.4 
IPMC.  
 
Transfer of ownership 
 
It shall be unlawful for the owner of any dwelling unit or structure who has received a 
compliance order or upon whom a notice of violation has been served to sell, transfer, 
mortgage, lease or otherwise dispose of such dwelling unit or structure until the 
provisions of the compliance order or notice of violation have been complied with, or 
until such owner shall first furnish the grantee, transferee, mortgagee or lessee a true 
copy of any compliance order or notice of violation issued by the code official and shall 
furnish to the code official a signed and notarized statement from the grantee, 
transferee, mortgagee or lessee, acknowledging the receipt of such compliance order or 
notice of violation and fully accepting the responsibilities without condition for making 
the corrections or repairs required by such compliance order or notice of violation. 
 
Demolition 
 
The code official shall order the owner of any premises upon which is located any 
structure, which in the code official’s judgement after review is so deteriorated or 
dilapidated or had become so out of repair as to be dangerous, unsafe, insanitary or 
otherwise unfit for human habitation or occupancy, and such that it is unreasonable to 
repair the structure, to demolish and remove such structure; or if such structure is 
capable of being made safe by repairs, to repair and make safe and sanitary, or to 
board up and hold for future repair or to demolish and remove at the owner’s option; or 
where there has been a cessation of normal construction of any structure for a period of 
more than two years, the code official shall order the owner to demolish and remove 
such structure, or board up until future repair. Boarding the building up for future repair 
shall not exceed one year, unless approved by the building official. All notices and order 
shall comply with Section 107 IPMC.  
 



If the owner of a premises fails to comply with a demolition order within the time 
prescribed, the code official shall cause the structure to be demolished and removed, 
either through an available public agency or by contract or arrangement with private 
persons, and the cost of such demolition and removal shall be charged against the real 
estate upon which the structure is located and shall be a lien upon such real estate. 
 
When any structure has been ordered demolished and removed, the governing body or 
other designated officer under said contract or arrangement aforesaid shall have the 
right to sell the salvage and valuable materials at the highest price obtainable. The net 
proceeds of such sale, after deducting the expenses of such demolition and removal, 
shall be promptly remitted with a report of such sale or transaction, including the items 
of expense and the amounts deducted, for the person who is entitled thereto, subject to 
any order of a court. If such a surplus does not remain to be turned over, the report shall 
so state. 
 
Means of Appeal 
 
Application of appeal 
 
Any person directly affected by a decision of the code official or a notice or order issued 
under the IPMC shall have the right to appeal to the board of appeals, provided that a 
written application for appeal is filed within 30 days after the day the decision, notice or 
order was served. An application for appeal shall be based on a claim that the true 
intent of the IPMC or the rules legally adopted thereunder have been incorrectly 
interpreted, the provisions of the IPMC do not fully apply, or the requirements of the 
IPMC are adequately satisfied by other means. 
 
Notice of meeting 
 
The board shall meet upon notice from the chairperson, within 20 days of the filing of an 
appeal, or at stated periodic meetings. 
 
Court review 
 
Any person, whether or not a previous party of the appeal, shall have the right to apply 
to the appropriate court for a writ of certiorari to correct errors of law.  Application for 
review shall be made in the manner and time required by law following the filing of the 
decision in the office of the chief administrative officer. 
 
Stays of enforcement 
 
Appeals of notice and orders (other than Imminent Danger notices) shall stay the 
enforcement of the notice and order until the appeal is heard by the appeals board. 
 



 

Inspection Made
Building Detrmined to be Unsafe

Title Search

Notice of Unsafe Building Served on 
Owner

Delivered Personally or Certified or 
First Class Mail Addressed to Last 

Known Address or if undelivered, a 
Copy shall be Posted in a Conspicious 

Place in or about the Structure 
Affected by Such Notice

No Appeal Filed
Notice in Local Newspaper

Certificate of Unsafe Building 
Placard Posted

Take Bids for Demolition

Building Repaired or Demolished
Lien Placed on Property

Owner Files Written Appeal to 
Building Official

Notice of Meeting
The Board Shall Meet Upon 
Notice from the Chairman, 

Within 20 Days of the Filing of an 
Appeal, or at Stated Periodic 

Meetings

Based on Hearing, Board Issues 
Final Notice of Abatement

Owner Notified in Writing of 
Board's Decision

Order to Proceed with Repair or 
Demolition

Owner my take Case to Civil 
Court

Building Rpaired and Declared 
Safe
or 

Building Demolished / Lien 
Placed on Property

 20 Days  20 Days 

 20 Days 

 10 Days 

 30 Days  30 Days 



 
 
To: Shaun Greenwood 
 
From: Lt. Brian Lorick 
 
Reference: Dilapidated Structure List 
 
Date: July 6, 2015 
 
The following is a prioritized list of structures that need to be addressed by the Unsafe Structure 
Program. We developed a rating system from one to three, one being the worst, two being 
moderate and three being the least severe. Once the program is in place we will start with the 
number one’s and work our way through the list until the funds are expended.     
 

 
1. 1107 Allen Street (1) 
2. 2811 Tree Street (old military barracks building) (1) 
3. 1414 Lafayette Avenue (1) 
4. 1325 Poplar Street (1) 
5. 1517 Poplar Street (1) 
6. 1511 Hart Street (1) 
7. 1610 & 1612 Jones Street (1) 
8. 1537 & 1539 Benedict Street (1) 
9. 1531 Benedict Street (1) 

 
10. 2214 Lee Street (2) 
11. 2324 & 2326 Lee Street (2) 
12. 1203-1207 Lucas Street (old block apartments) (2) 
13. 2807 Tree Street (2) 
14. 2832 Tree Street (2) 
15. 2817 Peach Street (old military barracks building) (2) 
16. 2001 & 2003 Congaree Drive (old Reedy residence) (2) 
17. 1520 Hopkins Street (2) 
18. 1328 Poplar Street (2) 
19. 1520 Poplar Street (2) 
20. 1303 Frink Street (2) 
21. 610 Frink Street (2) 
22. 2825 Tree Street (old mobile home in fenced lot)  (2) 

Charles E. McNair 
Director  

CAYCE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY 
Two Lavern Jumper Road ▪ Cayce, SC 29033 
Post Office Box 2004 ▪ Cayce, SC 29171 
Phone (803) 794-0456 ▪ Fax (803) 794-2393 

Committed to Professionalism 



23. 2855 Tree Street (O’neal Reeds’ old mobile home and white block building) (3) 
24. 1416 Pond Street (3) 
25. 1804 Sulton Street (3) 
26. 1405 Michaelmus Avenue (3) 
27. 2303 Julius Felder Street (old Star Club building)  (3) 
28. 2240 Julius Felder Street (3) 
29. 731 McDuffie Street (old boarded up home across from 734 McDuffie)  (3) 
30. 1810 8th Street (3) 
31. 1705 Wadsworth (house has burnt down-waiting on insurance claim)  (3) 
32. 734 McDuffie (3) 
33. 1345 Michaelmus (3) 
34. 1817 Middle Street ( Commercial) 

 



APPROVED MINUTES 
BEAUTIFICATION BOARD 

Tuesday June 9, 2015 at 5:30 p.m. 
City Hall  

I. CALL TO ORDER 

John Winn called the meeting to order at 5:38pm on Tuesday June 9th.  Members present were Sue Miles, 
Sue Perry, John Winn, Jocelyn Locke, Morgan Hanes, potential new member Vernetta Blakely, and City 
liaison Michelle Paulchel.   

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A motion to approve the meeting minutes from March 2015 was made by Morgan Hanes.  Sue Perry
seconded the motion. The decision was unanimous.

III. OLD BUSINESS

a. The Fall Plant Exchange has been tentatively set for Saturday October 10th beginning at 10am.

b. Potential Seminars:  Bee Seminar in November?  Tentatively set for Saturday November 7th.
1. Need to contact MidState Beekeepers Association

c. We ordered and received (3)M, (3)L, (3)XL red t-shirts and (5)M navy shirts from School Cuts in West
Columbia.

a. Update on potential new members:
1. Jane Jones at 2532 Stonehinge Dr. Cayce – 803-422-8380 – Retiring in a year
2. Kim Masters at 321 Tamwood Cir. Cayce – 803-739-1419 – Would like to help out but can’t

make meetings due to prior obligations
3. Maryann Dowd – submitted application and was invited to last meeting, but was not present.

IV. NEW BUSINESS

a. Members voted unanimously to have Vernetta Blakely join the Board.

b. Morgan (& husband), Sue Miles, and Jocelyn Locke met at Museum to fill planters.

c. "All About Urban Trees" Seminar with James Denny, Horticultural Expert and Manager of the City’s Parks
Department set for Saturday, August 15, 2015 at 10am. in the Cayce Museum basement meeting room.

d. John Winn has resigned.

V. ADJOURNMENT 

A motion to adjourn was made by John Winn.  Jocelyn Locke seconded the motion. The decision was 
unanimous.  

ITEM VII. A. 



City of Cayce 
Committee Appointments/Reappointments 

August 4, 2015 

All open positions will be advertised on the City’s website and Facebook page. 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUIRED 

BEAUTIFICATION FOUNDATION - ONE (1) POSITION 
Ms. Kim Wells’ term expired in July and she would like to serve again.  Ms. Wells has served on the 
Foundation since 2010 and consistently attends the meetings.  Her reappointment application is 
attached for Council’s review.   

NO COUNCIL ACTION REQUIRED 
The following positions have been postponed by Council until receipt of potential member 
applications. 

ACCOMMODATIONS TAX COMMITTEE – THREE (3) POSITIONS 
Ms. Cherelle Davis is no longer employed with the Country Inn & Suites.  Ms. Sue Wofford is no longer 
with Knights Inn.  These positions must be filled by someone from the motel industry in Cayce.  The staff 
liaison is currently speaking with motel managers regarding this position.  Mr. Peter Fikas is no longer 
employed with Red Lobster. This position must be filled by someone from the restaurant industry in 
Cayce.   

BEAUTIFICATION BOARD – TWO (2) POSITIONS 
Ms. Joanne Wilson resigned from the Board in January.  Her resignation letter is attached.  The Board 
has no recommendation at this time.  Mr. Joshua Call was removed from the Board in March due to 
three or more consecutive unexcused absences.  

CONSOLIDATED BOARD OF APPEALS – FOUR (4) POSITIONS 
Members of the Board are appointed by Council.  They reviews citizen appeals to ensure building 
codes, property maintenance codes and fire codes are properly interpreted and implemented fairly. 
Members who serve on this Board must be either an Engineer, Contractor, Architect or Design 
Professional.    

EVENTS COMMITTEE – TWO (2) POSITIONS 
Mr. Jay Thompson resigned from the Events Committee in September due to an increased workload. 
There is also another open position on the Committee since the membership increased from nine 
members to eleven.  There are no recommendations at this time.   

PUBLIC SAFETY FOUNDATION – FOUR (4) POSITIONS  
At the February 3, 2015 Council Meeting Council approved amendments to the Cayce Public Safety 
Foundation’s Bylaws.  In order to ensure that Council is able to recruit more directors to the Foundation, 
the Foundation Bylaws now read that Council may appoint directors from within the City at large and 
directors need not be from particular Council districts. 

 Also, the amended Bylaws state a quorum consists of the number of directors attending a meeting; 
provided, that in no event shall a quorum consist of fewer than two (2) directors.  Therefore any action 
needed can be taken at each meeting.       

ITEM VII. B. 




	Agenda
	Council Minutes July 7, 2015
	Council Minutes July 15, 2015

	Item II. A. - Presentation
	Item IV. A. - White Paper Mutual Aid
	Item IV. A. - Resolution and Agreement

	Item V. A. - Whitepaper Unsafe Structures
	Item V. A. - Unsafe Structure Program
	Item V. A. - Flow Chart
	Item V. A. - Dilapidated Structure List


	Item VII. A. - Comm Minutes
	Item VII. B. - Appts & Reappts
	Item VII. B. - Reappointment Application


